ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 16, 2002
1:38 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Scott Ogan, Vice Chair
Representati ve Jeannette Janes
Representati ve John Coghi l
Representati ve Kevin Meyer
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representative Al bert Kookesh
VEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg, Chair
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS:

Select Coonmittee on Legislative Ethics

Bonni e Mehner - Anchorage
Arthur S. Robinson - Sol dotna
H. Connor Thomas - None

- CONFI RVATI ONS ADVANCED
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REG STER

BONNI E MEHNER, Appoi nt ee

Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics

2923 McCol lie Drive

Anchor age, Al aska 99517

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Select
Committee on Legislative Ethics.

ARTHUR S. ROBI NSQON, Appoi nt ee

Sel ect Conmttee on Legislative Ethics
35401 Kenai Spur Hi ghway

Sol dot na, Al aska 99669

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- January 16, 2002



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Select
Committee on Legislative Ethics.

H. CONNOR THOVAS, Appoi ntee
Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics

PO Box 61
Nonme, Al aska 99762
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the Select

Comm ttee on Legislative Ethics.
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 02-1, SIDE A
Number 0001

VICE CHAIR SCOTT OGAN, acting as chair, <called the House
Judiciary Standing Committee neeting to order at 1:38 p.m
Representatives Ogan, Coghill, Janmes, Meyer, and Kookesh were
present at the call to order. Representative Berkowitz arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NGS5

Sel ect Conmittee on Legislative Ethics

Nunber 0047

VICE CHAIR OGAN announced that the commttee would consider
three appointees to the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics:
Bonni e Mehner, Arthur S. Robi nson, and H Connor Thomas.

Nunber 0137

BONNI E MEHNER, Appointee, Select Conmttee on Legislative
Ethics, testified via teleconference. In response to the
guestion of why she wished to serve on the Select Committee on
Legislative Ethics, she said she viewed it as another way of
serving her community and anticipated that it would be a change
from what she usually does in her regular profession of rea

est ate. She noted that she is active in the comunity, and
while she had not anticipated the extent of the "hoops and
whi stl es” she would have to go through, she is willing to serve

on the commttee.
VICE CHAIR OGAN noted that although ethics are not always

spelled out in the statutes, they are the "heart of the intent."
He surmsed that Ms. Mehner mght be asked to make sone tough

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- January 16, 2002



judgnent calls fromtinme to time, adding that he assunmes she is
aware of and confortable with the inherent responsibility.

M5. MEHNER concurr ed.

REPRESENTATI VE KOOKESH noted that he has reviewed Ms. Mehner's
resune, and that he is supportive of her  appoi nt nent,
particularly in light of the fact that she graduated from Al aska
Met hodi st University, fromwhich he, too, graduated.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES, after noting that M. Mehner's resune
indicated she attended 16 different schools while grow ng up,
asked how this experience influenced her.

M5. MEHNER said it was a positive experience, helping broaden
her as a person by exposing her to lots of different situations
and to people in different walks of life. She observed that
when a person noves around a lot as a child, he/she could grow
up either being open to new i deas or being shy.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER recalled that when he was serving on the
Anchorage Assenbly, M. Mehner served as the chair of the
Anchorage Arts Advisory Conmm ssion. He added that Ms. Mehner
represented that group very well, and he expressed confidence
that she would serve well on the Select Comrmittee on Legislative
Et hi cs.

VICE CHAIR OGAN renm nded nenbers that signing the reports
regarding appointnments to boards and commissions in no way
reflects individual nenbers' approval or disapproval of the
appoi ntees, and that the nom nations are nerely forwarded to the
full legislature for confirmation or rejection.

Nunmber 0628

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noved to report the nomi nation of Bonnie
Mehner to the Select Committee on Legislative Ethics out of
comittee. There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced.

Nunmber 0673

ARTHUR S. ROBINSON, Appointee, Select Commttee on Legislative
Ethics, testified via teleconference. In response to the
question of why he wished to serve on the Select Conmttee on
Legislative Ethics, he said he envisions serving on the
commttee as a good way to volunteer nmeaningful conmunity

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- January 16, 2002



service on a part-tine basis. He offered that the Select
Commttee on Legislative Ethics carries out an inportant
government function and that he wanted to assist in this
process.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES noted that M. Robinson is an attorney and
surm sed that as such, is probably used to cut-and-dried sorts
of situations. She said that she has always had the belief that
"we all really know what ethical behavior is, but we do need to
have sonebody | ook over us." She asked M. Robi nson whether he
thinks it true that in determining what's ethical and what isn't
for those in public service, it's not necessarily what is right
or wong, but rather what has the | ooks of being right or wong.

MR. ROBINSQN, in response, said that in nmany instances (sone of
whi ch are addressed in the [Standards of Conduct] statutes), the
appearance of being ethical is as inportant as being ethical.
He added that certainly there mght be tines when questions wll
ari se regardi ng whether doing sonmething or not doing sonething
will fall into the category of unethical conduct, or have the
appear ance of doing so under sone circunstances.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES, remarking that "it's kind of subjective,”
asked M. Robi nson what he woul d use to base his decisions on.

MR. ROBINSON said that according to his understanding, work on
the Select Conmittee on Legislative Ethics involves two things:
one, meking decisions based on conplaints that a |egislator or
| egi sl ative enployee has done sonething unethical (whi ch
requires investigating the facts and determ ning whether the
[ Standards of Conduct] statutes have been violated; and two,
responding to inquiries from legislators [and |egislative
enpl oyees] as to whether specific conduct would be unethical.
For the latter, the commttee would review the question in |ight
of the statutes and past advisory opinions to fornulate an
advi sory opinion specific to the current question. Thus, he
surm sed, his personal opinion would not have nuch to do wth
any decisions the Select Conmttee on Legislative Ethics nakes
as a whole regarding conplaints since the comittee 1is
constrained to matching the facts of any conplaint with existing

statute. He also surmised that the sane would be true of
advisory opinions even though these do not entail any
investigation; the commttee would still be relying on statutes

and precedents to form advi sory opinions.

Nunmber 0965

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- January 16, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE JAMES posited that it is in the advisory opinions
where subjectivity could play a part; she suggested that in
| ooking to give advisory opinions, the Select Conmttee on
Legislative Ethics mght need to be a little bit stricter with
regard to what is considered ethical behavior.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ remarked that there is no prohibition
in the [Legislature's] ethical standards against engaging in
conduct that has the appearance of inpropriety; because it's
only in the preanble, he added, it does not have any statutory
strength. He suggested that "perhaps that's one of the issues
we can cure later on down the road" by attaching nore weight to
avoi di ng the appearance of inpropriety.

REPRESENTATI VE JAMES said it is her personal belief that in her
own personal behavior, she needs to avoid [conduct] that m ght
have even the appearance of bei ng unethical.

VICE CHAIR OGAN pointed out that anyone who wants to get
reel ected doesn' t want to Create t he appear ance [ of
i npropriety]; "ultimately the voters are who hold you
accountable,” he added. He suggested that during election
season, a lot of the charges of ethics violations are sinply
based on partisan politics instigated by people who would Iike
to see a person out of office. He asked, "How do you separate
t he wheat fromthe chaff?"

MR. ROBINSON explained that if it is a conplaint situation, the
main responsibility would be to investigate it to determne
whet her the allegation has any substance to it based on real

facts. If the conplaint cannot be substantiated, it does not
need to be acted on. He acknow edged that in the political
world, it can be hard to determ ne, sonetines, what's the "rea
stuff" and what's not because of political maneuvering. He

reiterated that as a nenber of the Select Conmttee on
Legislative Ethics, he would be constrained to finding out what
is really going in terns of facts as a opposed to nerely | oud
all egations. Wthout facts, the conmttee would not be able to
support any recomrendation against a legislator or |egislative
enpl oyee.

VICE CHAIR OGAN noted that one of the aspects of having a
citizen legislature is that nenbers occasionally change |obs,
and this can potentially raise conflict-of-interest questions.

Nunber 1273

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- January 16, 2002



REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to report the nom nation of
Arthur S. Robinson to the Select Conmittee on Legislative Ethics
out of commttee. There being no objection, the confirmtion
was advanced.

Nunmber 1305

H CONNOR THOVAS, Appointee, Select Conmittee on Legislative
Ethics, testified via teleconference. In response to the
question of why he wished to serve again on the Select Conmmttee
on Legislative Ethics, he said that he enjoyed his first term

and that he is now famliar with how the process works. He
added that serving on the conmittee is an opportunity to provide
public service wthout an overwhelmng tine conmtnent. When

asked which of his prior-term experiences stand out the nost, he
referred to potential conflict of interest issues, those that
have arisen in connection both with |obbyists and others who are
not | obbyi sts.

VICE CHAIR OGAN asked whether M. Thonas had any specific
recommendation for |legislators regarding proper procedures for
clearing things with the Select Conmttee on Legislative Ethics.
He related that he has asked for advisory opinions over the
years.

MR. THOVAS said that the real heart of what the commttee does,
according to his experience, is issue advisory opinions. He
conti nued:

"I think that's the opportunity that is provided for
feedback on things that may ... create an appearance
of inpropriety; it may not be an actual violation of
the ethics code, but a person should be told that.
And the fact that they call and ask for an advisory
opinion -- | totally agree that that is really ... the
nmeat of what the conmttee does and should be doing,
because anytinme you can avoid a conplaint, you ve done
a service.

VICE CHAIR OGAN recounted that he has actually observed the
press criticizing legislators for asking for an advisory opinion
on something, on the grounds that it inplies that if a
| egislator asks for an advisory opinion before doing an
activity, he/she nmust have a guilty conscience.

MR. THOVAS said he disagrees with that assunption. He added,
"It seens to ne |ike the prudent thing to do."

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- January 16, 2002



Number 1510

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER noved to report the nom nation of H Connor
Thomas to the Select Commttee on Legislative Ethics out of
committee. There being no objection, the confirmation was
advanced.

ADJ OURNVENT

Number 1528

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judiciary Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at 2:00 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- January 16, 2002



